














 

Department of Planning  200 S. Hamilton Rd.  Gahanna, Ohio 43230  

  

 
March 9, 2023 
 
Stonehenge Land Co 
147 N High St 
Gahanna, OH 43230-3028 
 

RE:   Project Morse Rd Variance 
  
  
Dear Stonehenge Land Co: 
 
The following comments were generated from the review of the submitted plans and documents for the 
referenced project.   
 
 
 

Planning 

 
1. Informational Comment: No objection to either of the proposed variances. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have general comments or questions, please contact me at kelly.wicker@gahanna.gov or (614) 342-
4025.  If your questions are specific to a certain department’s comments please reach out to that department.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kelly Wicker 
Planning and Zoning Coordinator 



 

STAFF REPORT 

Request Summary 

The applicant is requesting approval of Final Development Plan, Design Review, and Variance applications 

for the construction of an apartment complex at parcel #025-011219, located on the southern side of 

Morse Road. The site is currently zoned MFRD – Multifamily Residential. 

Rezoning, Conditional Use, and Variance applications were approved for this project towards the end of 

2022. The approved conditional uses allow for an increase in density and building height, the inclusion of 

accessory use buildings, and a flexible arrangement of buildings. The approved Variance application 

reduced the required lot width for the site, reduced the parking setback from residential buildings, and 

extended the Conditional Use expiration to two years. 

The proposed development includes a total of 251 units on approximately 13.96 acres. This brings the 

density to approximately 18 units per acre, which meets Code requirements with the previously approved 

Conditional Use. A model unit, clubhouse with ancillary amenity space, and freestanding garages are also 

part of the proposal. 7 garage structures and 11 residential buildings are proposed on site, including the 

clubhouse.  

The total number of parking spaces provided on-site is 505 (2 per unit), which exceeds the 379 required 

spaces (1.5 per unit). 444 of these spaces are uncovered and 61 are garage spaces. The proposal also 

meets the requirements for 15% of common, open, usable space through the inclusion of rain gardens, 

the front lawn, dog run area, pool and amenity space, and other lawns. 

The site is presently covered by mature vegetation, and Code requires 280 caliper inches of trees be 

located on-site post-development. This can be accomplished through a combination of preserving existing 

trees on the site and planting new trees. 512 caliper inches are proposed with this development, therefore 

exceeding Code requirements. 

Final Development Plan 

Planning Commission shall approve an FDP application if the following four conditions are met: 

 The proposed development meets the applicable development standards of this Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 The proposed development is in accord with appropriate plans for the area. 

 The proposed development would not have undesirable effects on the surrounding area. 

 The proposed development would be in keeping with the existing land use character and 

physical development potential of the area. 

 

Design Review 

The property is zoned MFRD and is therefore subject to the standards of Design Review District 2 (DRD-

2).  Relevant standards include the following: 

 Adequate parking shall be provided with access to recreational and open space facilities. 

 Colors shall be of a palette that fosters harmonious relationship with other uses and structures. 



 

 Building materials should be of a nature that will enhance the development and existing land 

values.  Brick, slate, wood, cement, stucco, or other materials should provide diversity, but, at the 

same time, should be consistent with the surrounding area. 

o Decorative stone and bricks are preferred, but decorative wood or siding may be used if 

approved by Planning Commission. 

 

Variance 

The following variances have been requested: 

1. 1167.18(c)(1) – Screening of Trash Containers or Receptacles 

a. Code requires that all trash containers be located to the rear of a primary structure. 

b. Staff does not object to the variance request. The trash receptacle still meets all other 

requirements, including screening. Multiple variances to this Code provision have been 

approved in the past for various projects. 

2. 1163.08(h) – Interior Landscaping Requirements 

a. Code requires a 10-foot-wide island with screening for every two rows of parking. 

b. Staff does not object to this variance request. The layout and density of the site makes it 

difficult to meet this requirement. Multiple variances to this Code provision have been 

approved in the past for various projects. 

 

Planning Commission shall not grant a variance unless it finds that all the following conditions apply: 

a) There are special circumstances or conditions applying to the land, building or use referred to in 

the application. 

b) The granting of the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial 

property rights. 

c) The granting of the application will not materially affect adversely the health or safety of persons 

residing or working in the neighborhood of the proposed use and will not be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or improvements in such neighborhood. 

 

Staff Comments 

Staff recommends approval of all three applications as submitted. The proposed development meets all 

applicable Code requirements and above criteria. The two requested variances are commonly approved 

and necessary to develop the site at this density. Additionally, the Land Use Plan identifies a need for 

more diverse housing options as the population in the region continues to grow. 

 

During the Rezoning hearing in 2022, concerns regarding the development were raised by residents of 

adjacent neighborhoods. To address these concerns, the applicant has included substantial screening 

around the perimeter of the site through the use of many existing, mature trees and a vinyl privacy fence. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Location/Zoning Map 

 
 

Submitted Site Plan 
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Submitted Elevations 

 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted By:  

Maddie Capka 

Planner 
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